
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Candida Mckelvey, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 07895 213820
E-mail: candida.mckelvey@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 20 November 2020
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Climate Emergency Advisory Committee

WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY 30 NOVEMBER 2020 AT 6.00 PM

VIRTUAL MEETING
watch the meeting live: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ

Members of the Committee:
Sue Roberts (Chair)
Sam Casey-Rerhaye
Sue Cooper
Stefan Gawrysiak
Sarah Gray

Kate Gregory
Simon Hewerdine
Lynn Lloyd
Jane Murphy

Caroline Newton
David Rouane
Celia Wilson

Substitutes
Ken Arlett
Robin Bennett
Elizabeth Gillespie
Lorraine Hillier

Kellie Hinton
Mocky Khan
Axel Macdonald
Andrea Powell

Jo Robb
Anne-Marie Simpson
Alan Thompson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

MARGARET REED
Head of Legal and Democratic 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


2

1 Chair's announcements  

To receive any announcements from the chair and general housekeeping matters.

2 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.

3 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.

4 Urgent business  

To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent. 

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered 
to speak.  

6 Minutes (to follow)  

To review the minutes of the last meeting on 28 October 2020, to agree them as a correct 
record and for the chair to sign them as such (to follow).

7 Circular economy (Pages 4 - 13)

For the committee to review a discussion paper on the circular economy and consider 
input into this area as part of the Corporate Plan 2020-24.

Officers Michelle Wells and Andy Egan.

8 One-year work programme progress update  

One-year work programme progress update, alignment to Corporate Plan and future 
planning.

For the committee to receive a verbal update on the progress of the projects in the 
approved year-one work programme and future work planning.

Officers Michelle Wells and Andy Egan.



3

9 Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy update (Pages 
14 - 17)

For the committee to receive a project update, from Councillor Caroline Newton.

10 HM Government's 10-point green plan (Pages 18 - 21)

For the committee to receive a summary paper on HM Government’s 10-point green plan.

Officers Michelle Wells and Andy Egan.

11 Future work programme items  

For committee to review the list of future work programme items, and to raise any 
potential new items to add.



Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee

AGENDA ITEMReport of Acting Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations
Author: Michelle Wells 
Telephone: 07917 088341

E-mail: michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
Cabinet member responsible: Andrea Powell
E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
To: Climate Emergency Advisory Committee
DATE: 30 November 2020

The Circular Economy 

Recommendation(s)

(a) Committee to note the key benefits and policy thinking of implementing 
Circular Economy principles and how this can support climate change action; 
as well as providing an opportunity to consider any recommendations to 
Cabinet on how to embed the principles within the Council. 

Purpose of Report

1. This report provides an overview of both the opportunity to and importance of 
switching from a linear to a Circular Economy and how this is already gaining 
traction globally, nationally and locally. 

Strategic Objectives 

2. Following public consultation of South Oxfordshire District Council’s Corporate 
Plan 2020-2024, the topic ‘Action on the Climate Emergency’ was one of six 
priority themes identified. Five of the proposed projects under this theme received 
a very high proportion (over 80 per cent) of respondents indicating that the 
project was either ‘very important’ or ‘important’ to the public. The project to 
‘Promote the Circular Economy (reduce, re-use and recycle), including in our 
waste management contracts’ received an exceptionally high proportion (91 per 
cent) indicating that it was either ‘very important’ or ‘important’. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 7



3. In response to Covid-19, there appears to be a global consensus that a ‘green 
recovery’ is essential. In a previous Climate Emergency Advisory Committee 
(CEAC) meeting, a Green Recovery report was presented and the CEAC should 
note how a transition towards a Circular Economy aligns with the goals of a green 
recovery.

Background

4. As we respond to the challenges caused by the coronavirus pandemic, the 
question is no longer whether we build back better, but how? Many have called 
for a response to the devastating impacts of the pandemic that does not turn 
attention away from other pressing global challenges, such as climate change 
and pollution. The Circular Economy offers one solution about how to do so. By 
designing out waste, keeping products and materials in use and regenerating 
natural systems, it will create valuable opportunities for economic growth that 
also addresses environmental issues, create jobs and benefits society. 

5. The global population is growing, consumption rates are increasing which is 
increasing resource extraction. This poses considerable risks to the environment 
as well as human health through; resource depletion, pollution of air, water and 
soil, climate change and a loss of biodiversity. In order to ensure that there is 
enough food, water and natural wealth in the future, we need to switch from a 
linear economy to a circular one. 

6. The linear economy is based on the ‘take-make-waste’ approach when it comes 
to using resources. We extract resources from the ground to make products, 
which we then use and, when we no longer want them, we throw them away. The 
linear economy relies on using finite resources: metals, minerals, fossil fuels, land 
and water. Once those products are discarded, we send it to landfill or to be 
incinerated. During this process, we are allowing value to leak out of our natural 
system whilst also damaging our natural and human environment. The current 
system no longer works for businesses, people or the environment. To enable 
change, we need to transform all the elements of the ‘take-make-waste’ system: 
how we make and use products, and what we do with the materials afterwards. 

7. The Circular Economy is an alternative to the linear ‘take-make-waste’ economy 
which is currently harming people and the environment; instead, it applies a 
‘reduce-reuse-recycle’ approach. It seeks to extract the maximum value from 
resources whilst they are in use, then recover and regenerate products and 
materials at the end of their life. It prioritises making the most out of existing 
resources and materials through strategies such as: maintenance, cascading1, 
sharing, reusing, redistribution, remanufacturing, recycling or recovery2. It’s a 
new way to design, make and use things within planetary boundaries. The Ellen 
MacArthur Foundations publication on the climate impacts of adopting a Circular 

1 Cascading maximises resource effectiveness by using biomass in products that create the most 
economic value over multiple lifetimes. This approach to production and consumption states that 
energy recovery should be the last option, and only after all higher-value products and services have 
been exhausted. 
2 Circle Economy, The Role of Municipal Policy in the Circular Economy. June 2019, p.5

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



Economy3 indicate that as much as 45 per cent of the greenhouse gases, as 
emissions, are created by the products and materials we use, which can be 
better managed within a Circular Economy. 

8. There are three key principles for a Circular Economy:

1. Design out waste and pollution: products need to be designed 
differently so that they can be used longer, resold, repaired, upgraded and 
upcycled into new products.  For example, this means choosing materials 
that can easily be recycled and designing the whole product so that it can 
be taken apart. 

2. Keep products and materials in use: with the right designs, companies 
can create new systems to reuse materials and not waste the energy used 
to create them. For example; this means a new way of packaging 
products, such as Loop, a system where major brands are testing to bring 
reusable packaging to everyday products such as shampoo and ice 
cream4. For Ikea, it means moving to new models such as furniture 
rentals; so, products like bookcases and tables don’t end up being thrown 
out after use5. But rather, the product is rented out to a new user which 
extends the lifetime value of the product, thus improving the use of the 
asset.

3. Regenerate natural systems: for example, industrial agriculture isn’t 
sustainable from the pollution caused by fertilizer. Regenerative agriculture 
include a set of farming practices that have the potential, not only to make 
soil healthier but to also capture the carbon in the soil. A circular approach 
also means capturing nutrients from food waste that is currently sent to 
landfills and bringing those nutrients back to farms. 

9. Up to 80 per cent of a products’ environmental impact is determined at the design 
phase6. However, the linear pattern of ‘take-make-waste’ does not provide 
producers with sufficient incentives to make their products more circular. And, 
many products fail/break down too quickly, cannot be easily repurposed, repaired 
or recycled and many are also made for single use.

10.By simply changing our mindset, to view waste as a design flaw and then 
harnessing new materials and technologies in a better way, we can ensure that 
waste and pollution are not created in the first place. Once adopted, this new 
approach will lead to making products fit for a climate-neutral, resource-efficient 
and Circular Economy, as well as reducing waste; sustainable products will then 
become the norm. 

3 Ellen MacArthur Foundations, Completing the picture: how the Circular Economy tackles climate 
change, September 2019. 
4 https://www.fastcompany.com/90296956/a-coalition-of-giant-brands-is-about-to-change-how-we-
shop-forever-with-a-new-zero-waste-platform
5 https://www.ikea.com/us/en/this-is-ikea/newsroom/ikea-will-test-furniture-leasing-in-30-markets-
during-2020-pub1ae9e5e1
6 https://op.europa.eu/en/publication-detail/-/publication/4d42d597-4f92-4498-8e1d-857cc157e6db 

Page 6

Agenda Item 7

https://www.fastcompany.com/90296956/a-coalition-of-giant-brands-is-about-to-change-how-we-shop-forever-with-a-new-zero-waste-platform
https://www.fastcompany.com/90296956/a-coalition-of-giant-brands-is-about-to-change-how-we-shop-forever-with-a-new-zero-waste-platform
https://www.ikea.com/us/en/this-is-ikea/newsroom/ikea-will-test-furniture-leasing-in-30-markets-during-2020-pub1ae9e5e1
https://www.ikea.com/us/en/this-is-ikea/newsroom/ikea-will-test-furniture-leasing-in-30-markets-during-2020-pub1ae9e5e1
https://op.europa.eu/en/publication-detail/-/publication/4d42d597-4f92-4498-8e1d-857cc157e6db


International perspective on a Circular Economy 

11.More than 50 Global Leaders: Policymakers, CEOs and other influential 
individuals are highlighting the Circular Economy as a solution to ‘build back 
better’ in response to the economic impact of the coronavirus pandemic. They 
call on businesses and governments around the world to join the journey towards 
a Circular Economy, to invest in Circular Economy solutions and raise the 
ambition level of Circular Economy targets7. Further details are in Appendix 1.  

12.Changing the current system to a circular one requires everyone and many things 
to change; it impacts businesses, governments, cities and individuals, but also 
benefits them all too; our jobs and our products. We are moving to a system 
where we design out waste and pollution, keep products and materials in use and 
regenerate our natural systems. 

13.The European Commission has adopted a new Circular Economy Action Plan 
which forms a major part of the European Green Deal, Europe’s new agenda for 
sustainable growth, further details are in Appendix 1. 

14.Some of the front runners in Europe include the Netherlands, whose aim is to 
reduce its use of primary raw materials by 50 per cent in five economic sectors by 
2030. Additionally, France has adopted an anti-waste law for the Circular 
Economy in early 2020, which bans the destruction of unsold goods, encourages 
donations and fosters secondary markets8.  

National approach to a Circular Economy 

15. In the UK, many leading businesses – including Amey, Anglian Water, Arup, 
Interface, JLL, Jaguar Land Rover, Lloyds Bank, PwC, Recycling Lives, Rolls 
Royce, Unilever to name a few – are embarking on a Circular Economy approach 
and are seeing economic benefits in terms of direct cost savings, new market 
opportunities, improved market positioning and the ability to grow in a challenging 
environment9. Further details are in Appendix 1. 

16.A more ‘circular’ approach across the UK could increase resource productivity by 
3 per cent annually, generate £10bn GVA10 and 200,000 jobs by 2030, provide 
new market opportunities and improve the UK’s trade balance by 1-2 per cent11.

17. In collaboration with C40, The London Waste and Recycling Board developed a 
series of programmes and projects to accelerate the Circular Economy in 
London. As well as launching its Circular Economy Route Map in June 201712; to 

7 https://www.ellenmacarthurfoundation.org/news/more-than-50-global-leaders-pledge-to-build-back-
better-with-the-circular-economy 
8 Ibid, p.6
9 Ibid, p.6.
10 Gross Value Added (GVA) is the measure of the value of goods and services produces in an area, 
industry or sector of an economy. 
11 Business in the Community, Resource Productivity and the Circular Economy: The opportunities for 
the UK economy, 2018, p.6. 
12 LWARB, London’s Circular Economy Route Map, June 2017. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

https://www.ellenmacarthurfoundation.org/news/more-than-50-global-leaders-pledge-to-build-back-better-with-the-circular-economy
https://www.ellenmacarthurfoundation.org/news/more-than-50-global-leaders-pledge-to-build-back-better-with-the-circular-economy


provide guidance for the transition towards a Circular Economy as well as 
recommendations for stakeholders. 

18.The potential benefits are significant: London could receive a net benefit of £7bn 
a year by 2036 if they accelerate their transition, £2.8bn of which can be 
accessed by delivering the actions in the route map. The other £4.2bn of benefit 
comes from the UK, Europe and the world embracing a Circular Economy13. 
Further details in Appendix 1. 

Applying the key Circular Economy principles to Oxfordshire 

19.This next section considers how Oxfordshire are already applying the key 
principles of a Circular Economy but also highlights opportunities where these 
can be developed further. The key areas of focus are agriculture, community 
hubs, electric vehicles and waste management. 

Agriculture

20.  One-third of all food produced in Europe for human consumption is lost or 
wasted before people consume it14. Globally, that is around 1.3 billion tonnes 
every year15. 

21.With 74 per cent of Oxfordshire’s land being farmed (56 per cent is under cereals 
farming and 30 per cent under livestock grazing) and 2.7 per cent GVA 
contribution to the county16; the QSA report, Circular Economy in the Oxfordshire 
Plan 2050, makes a strong case for Agriculture in Oxfordshire to receive greater 
focus from a Circular Economy perspective17.

22. If systems are developed to minimise wastage of food and nutrients can be 
recovered from any waste created; then Oxfordshire can help sustain the 
agriculture sector, improve the quality of our farmland and create new 
businesses. 

23.The Wonky Food Company based in Woodstock offers a novel solution to the 
waste statistic, where around 40 per cent of the food that is grown in the UK goes 
to waste, simply because it isn’t pretty enough for the shop shelf18. The Wonky 
Food Company work with farmers, suppliers and retailers to collect their 
imperfect and surplus fruit and vegetables and turn them into relishes, which are 
sold in a range of stores across the country as well as available online. This 
applies the key Circular Economy principle to ‘keep products and materials in 
use’; by using current food waste as an ingredient in a new product. 

24.The QSA report highlights commitments that are in place within Oxfordshire to 
recover nutrients in food waste, sewage and wastewater in the Minerals and 

13 Ibid, p.4.
14 QSA, Circular Economy in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, September 2019.
15 https://www.wonkyfoodco.com/
16 https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/education/ 
17 QSA, Circular Economy in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, September 2019.
18 Ibid

Page 8

Agenda Item 7

https://www.wonkyfoodco.com/
https://www.wildoxfordshire.org.uk/education/


Waste Core Strategy and the Oxfordshire Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy. However, Oxfordshire could be doing more, particularly in applying the 
key Circular Economy principle to ‘regenerate natural systems’, with some 
suggested areas for exploration:

 More resource efficient agricultural practices and regenerative agricultural 
practices

 Use the strong technology skills to analyse and improve nutrient quality in 
agricultural soils – and demonstrate how its own circular nutrient recovery is 
effective in maintain healthy soils

 Local planning policy could cater for commercial food waste aggregation 
infrastructure to facilitate nutrient recovery through existing composting and 
anaerobic digestion facilities. 

 Within urban areas, redistribution of food fit for human use could be 
considered within planning development (minimising the wastage of premium 
food)

Community Initiatives

25.Oxfordshire hosts some successful projects within the community space that 
harness the Circular Economy principle to ‘keep products and materials in use’. 
However, there is opportunity for this to be replicated and expanded further 
across the county. 

26.SHARE Oxford host the Library of Things: “our mission is to work towards 
creating a culture of waste prevention and towards healthy economic production 
and consumption”19. The Library of Things (LoT) enables people to borrow 
instead of buying items, particularly items that are only occasionally needed. For 
example, DIY tools, outdoors and sports equipment, domestic and cooking 
equipment. 

27.The LoT improves the ‘use of assets’ through leasing products. This is a very 
different approach to the traditional behaviour of buying and owning goods; but 
emphasises the importance of maximising product value through sharing, rather 
than products being thrown out after use.

28.The LoT is encouraging and facilitating the avoidance of waste, space, money 
and the environment. The ‘things’ in the LoT are chosen and lent out an 
affordable rate to anyone who chooses to become a member of the Oxford LoT. 
They encourage members to participate in the functioning of the LoT, to create a 
‘community of borrowers’. To enable members to come together to borrow, 
share, meet like-minded people and learn about sustainability and the importance 
of a Circular Economy. 

29.SHARE Oxford also organises Repair Cafes, where you can bring objects that 
need repairing and skilled volunteer repairers will fix them and even provide an 

19 https://shareoxford.org/vision-and-mission/

Page 9

Agenda Item 7

https://shareoxford.org/vision-and-mission/


opportunity for attendees to learn how to fix other items. Typical repairs offered 
are for sewing/darning, bikes, electronic, mechanical, sharpening, jewellery and 
welding repairs. Repair Cafes are another example of how the Circular Economy 
principle ‘to keep products and materials in use’ is applied.

30.More dedicated repair cafes organised by community action groups are located 
across Oxfordshire: Abingdon, Cholsey, Eynsham, Didcot, Chinnor, Rose Hill, 
Wantage. These repair cafés will also collect broken items, to then repair and sell 
on second-hand to reduce the amount ending up in landfill. Repair café’s 
increase individual and community resourcefulness and resilience and helps 
those transition to a more sustainable lifestyle. 

Electric Vehicles

31.The Circular Economy can serve the transport revolution, where shared services, 
e-bikes, electric vehicles (EV’s) and autonomous vehicles (AVs) become 
standardised and common place. The circularity can be taken one step further by 
offering interconnected placed based mobility hubs that offer the shared vehicles, 
as well as other services, benefiting mobility access and social inclusion at a 
community scale, as well as decarbonising the sector. This is recognised at 
national and local levels. 

32.Assets such as EV charging points, EV cars and AV shuttles are provided as a 
service, allowing more adaptable service provision. These assets can also be 
reused at the end of its first life, by capturing the materials inside, and therefore 
maximises the lifetime value of the asset. For example; The electric-specific 
lithium-ion battery has its own chain of re-use. The batteries contain significant 
amounts of rare materials like cobalt. Extending the electric batter’s life through 
repairs, giving it a second life and finally recycling it are the central elements of 
the EV’s circular economic model. Repairs and reconditioning are at the heart of 
the EV battery lifecycle. Used EV batteries whose charge capacity has become 
too low for automotive use can be given a second life, for approximately 10 more 
years in mobile applications or stationary energy battery storage systems. 
Alternatively, Carwatt, for example use these second-life batteries to convert 
combustion-engine vehicles (technical machines like airport baggage carts) into 
electric vehicles20.

33.Oxfordshire is home to producers of BMW e-mini and EV charging points; this 
provides an opportunity for increased productivity and growth21. This is due to the 
fact items are not just sold, but provided as a service, this will create jobs in 
service support, repairing and remanufacturing. 

34.Oxfordshire could ensure that there is adequate provision for EV infrastructure as 
well as meeting residential EV charging needs. This is reflected in ongoing 
projects within South Oxfordshire’s Climate Emergency One-Year Work 

20 https://easyelectriclife.groupe.renault.com/en/outlook/the-circular-economy-applied-to-electric-
vehicles/
21 QSA, Circular Economy in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, September 2019, p.16.

Page 10

Agenda Item 7

https://easyelectriclife.groupe.renault.com/en/outlook/the-circular-economy-applied-to-electric-vehicles/
https://easyelectriclife.groupe.renault.com/en/outlook/the-circular-economy-applied-to-electric-vehicles/


Programme: Project 12 ‘Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy’ and 
Project 13 ‘Park and Charge’. 

35.There should also be localised consideration for EV and AC carpools and car-
sharing. Vehicles are actually stationary for the majority of their lives. There is a 
case for making them available for trips and when needed, car sharing on a self-
service basis optimises their rate of use. This also offers a more flexible and 
affordable way of getting around whilst also reducing air pollution. There are 
several electric car sharing services offered across Europe such as Zity, ZipCar, 
and WeShare. 

Waste Management 

36.Valuable resources are lost during waste management because of inefficient 
waste collection, consumer behaviour, lack of awareness and design 
complexities and hazardous substances that hamper recycling. Reducing loss of 
resources from waste management is key to strengthening the Circular Economy 
globally, nationally and locally. As previously noted, up to 80 per cent of a 
products’ environmental impact is determined at the design phase22; therefore, 
better design will significantly increase the amount of waste that can be 
recovered, once the Circular Economy is fully working. 

37.During South Oxfordshire’s Corporate Plan Engagement; the project to ‘Promote 
the Circular Economy (reduce, re-use and recycle), including in our waste 
management contracts’ received an exceptionally high proportion, with 91 per 
cent of respondents telling us that it was either ‘very important’ or ‘important’. 

38. In 2018/2019 South Oxfordshire District Council had the highest household 
recycling rate in the South East at 63 per cent which is the second highest 
recycling rate in the country (East Riding of Yorkshire Council with the highest at 
65 per cent)23. Over the last 5 years, South Oxfordshire District Council has had 
an average ‘household waste’ recycling rate of 65 per cent with the Vale of White 
Horse District Council at 64 per cent24.

39. In Oxfordshire, we should be aiming to achieve recycling rates of up to 80 per 
cent, by ensuring our current systems are properly used and bigger increases 
may be achieved by looking at further collection changes25. 

40. In Oxfordshire’s Resource and Waste Strategy 2018-202326, Oxfordshire 
Environment Partnership (OEP) have committed to:

 Working with residents to reduce the waste produced by each household and 
maximise the amount of waste re-used; by encouraging people to think about 
the products that they buy and how materials can be reused, recycled and 
composted.

22 https://op.europa.eu/en/publication-detail/-/publication/4d42d597-4f92-4498-8e1d-857cc157e6db 
23 Department for Environmental Food & Rural Affairs, Statistics on waste managed by local 
authorities in England in 2018/2019, November 2019, pp.17-8. 
24 Ibid, pp.17-18.
25 Oxfordshire’s Resources and Waste Strategy 2018-2023, p.15
26 Ibid, pp.23-6.

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

https://op.europa.eu/en/publication-detail/-/publication/4d42d597-4f92-4498-8e1d-857cc157e6db


 Increase reuse at the Household Waste Recycling Centres 
 Encourage and promote the donation and purchase of reusable items across 

the county as well as supporting Community Action Groups (i.e. LoT & Repair 
Cafes). 

 Recycle or compost at least 65 per cent of household waste by 31 March 
2025

 Recycle or compost at least 70 per cent household waste by 31 March 2030
 To landfill no more than 3 per cent of household rubbish

41.By 2040, Oxfordshire’s Population is expected to grow to 944,700 with over 
123,500 new houses constructed. This will mean approximately 130,000 tonnes 
more waste generated from residents, at an additional cost of £16 million per 
year to collect, recycle, compost and dispose of the waste generated27.

42. In order to prepare for population growth, it is essential to embed Circular 
Economy principles into activities and consider innovative ways to reduce, reuse 
and recycle more of our waste by: 

 Embedding Circular Economy principles into council practices and 
procurements to minimise waste generation in the future

 Promote and communicate the Circular Economy to residents, staff, 
Councillors and lobby Government to make it an essential part of national 
strategy

Oxfordshire Greentech

43. In the One-Year Work Programme, Project 8 ‘Oxfordshire Greentech’; the council 
have entered into a contract to become a member of the Oxfordshire Greentech, 
Oxfordshire’s network for low carbon and cleantech companies to grow the low 
carbon economy in South Oxfordshire. The Economic Development team at the 
Council are engaging with Oxfordshire Greentech to explore potential projects 
and initiatives to promote the Circular Economy within South Oxfordshire. 

Risks

44.There are no risks arising from this report.

Financial Implications

45.There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications

46.Currently there are no legal implications from this report.

27 Ibid, p.17.

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



Conclusion

47.This report gives an overview of both the opportunity to and importance of 
switching from a linear to a Circular Economy and how this is already gaining 
traction globally, nationally and locally. 

48.Looking forward, in light of the public consultation to South Oxfordshire’s District 
Council Corporate Plan 2020-24, this report provides an opportunity for Climate 
Emergency Advisory Committee members to discuss the circular economy and 
make any recommendations in order to strengthen and align with public priority to 
respond to the Climate Emergency, inclusive of Circular Economy principles. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



1

Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee

AGENDA ITEMReport of Head of 
Author: Michelle Wells
Telephone: 01235 422648
E-mail: Michelle.Wells@southandvale.gov.uk
Cabinet member responsible: Cllr. Andrea Powell 
E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
To: Climate Emergency Advisory Committee 
DATE: 30 November 2020 

Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle (EV) 
Infrastructure Strategy
Recommendation(s)

(a)  Committee to note the progress of the Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure Strategy development with consideration of the contribution to the 
Council’s Climate Emergency.

Purpose of Report

1. To bring attention to the Draft Oxfordshire EV Infrastructure Strategy (OEVIS) and 
to recommend that the Council operates in line with this strategy once approved in 
February 2021.

Strategic Objectives 

2. Oxfordshire’s Councils have an opportunity through the EV Infrastructure Strategy 
to support the reduction of transport emissions as part of a hierarchy of sustainable 
transport; encouraging uptake of clean EVs by working together to enable the 
development of a high quality EV charging network.

3. The draft vision for EV charging in Oxfordshire is:

 Residents, businesses and visitors in Oxfordshire will be confident they can 
recharge EVs conveniently, and in a manner appropriate for their needs.

 Oxfordshire’s EV charging provision will develop to meet the needs of users now 
and in the future, and in doing so support Oxfordshire’s transition to 
decarbonising transport and improving air quality

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



2

Background

4. To support the drive to reach net zero carbon emissions by 2050, the UK 
government has recently set out its accelerated ambitions for all new cars to be 
electric by 2030, with a commitment under its Ten Point Plan for a Green Industrial 
Revolution to end the sale of new petrol and diesel cars. The Plan includes 
spending of £1.3 billion to accelerate the rollout of EV chargepoints in homes, 
streets and on motorways across England and £582 million in grants for those 
buying zero or ultra-low emission vehicles to make them cheaper to buy and 
incentivise more people to make the transition.

5. Socio-economic factors mean Oxfordshire is likely to have faster growth in EV 
sales than the national average; University of Oxford predictions indicate that by 
2025 we could see up to 30,000 EVs on Oxfordshire’s roads. The projected growth 
of electric vehicles in Oxfordshire is well ahead of the national average as shown 
by the following chart:

6. The forecast increase in EV uptake makes the need for adequate EV charging 
infrastructure urgent – we need to plan now for action to be taken on EV charging 
within the coming 3-5 years. 

7. The strategy has strong links with Connecting Oxfordshire and the Oxfordshire 
Energy Strategy which seeks to integrate EVs into a smart and zero carbon energy 
infrastructure, and the Oxfordshire 2050 Plan to promote future-proofed 
development in the planned growth across Oxfordshire. The strategy will be linked 
closely with the council’s Climate Emergency and Oxfordshire County Council’s 
Climate Action Framework; where it will act as a supporting strategy to facilitate 
delivery of recommended actions.

8. This strategy is guiding the Park and Charge project which is being led by the 
Councils’ technical services team and will primarily provide EV charging facilities to 
residents without access to their own off-street parking and therefore enable wider 
scale EV adoption.

9. The strategy will help to deliver elements of the South Corporate Plan under 
Theme 3 (Climate Emergency) and Theme 5 (Homes and infrastructure).

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



3

Process

10.Oxfordshire County Council are leading development of the strategy, with 
representatives from each district council contributing to a Steering Group. The 
South representative is Cllr Caroline Newton; although the Steering Group has yet 
to meet. A meeting is scheduled for the week of 14 December. The officer Project 
Board representative is Michelle Wells, Insight and Policy Manager. Specialist 
support has been provided by Stuart Walker and Cathy Pearce in Development 
Management. The draft strategy document has been reviewed by Hannah Guest 
and Vicky Aston in Planning and Heather Saunders and Andy Egan in Insight and 
Policy.

Scope

11.The Strategy will provide an operational approach to enabling and deploying 
charging infrastructure. In the short-term (2020-2025), the objectives are to:

 Enable and deliver public EV charging across Oxfordshire 
 Adopt a common approach to managing EV charging in Council car parks
 Enable residents without access to private off-road parking to access a range of 

options for EV charging 
 Ensure that new developments include high quality EV charging infrastructure 
 Set standards for the quality of EV public EV charging in Oxfordshire which 

support development of a network which is high quality, open and accessible 

12.This strategy covers the administrative area of Oxfordshire County Council and 
includes the administrative areas of each of the five District Councils, and focusses 
on EV charging for cars, car-based vans, and taxis (hackney carriage and private 
hire vehicles) for three user groups with differing needs for EV charging: residents, 
local businesses and visitors.

13.The strategy does not cover EV charging for buses or large goods vehicles or e-
bikes and other micro-mobility solutions. These may be considered in future.

Policies

14.The strategy proposes a set of policies grouped under the following areas: Targets 
for EV charging; Funding public EV chargers; Public charging in local authority car 
parks; Visitor and workplace charging at Council sites; Charging without off-road 
parking; EV charging in new developments; EV charging in historic areas; 
Commercial car parks; Communal residential car parks; Workplace charging; 
Rapid charging on the strategic road network; Charging standards for Oxfordshire; 
managing impacts on the grid; promoting EVs and infrastructure.

Financial Implications

15.A number of the projects and actions arising from the strategy may
have financial implications for the Council. As a county wide strategy there will be 
opportunities for a shared resource. Before proceeding with any options,

Page 16

Agenda Item 9



4

a financial evaluation will be undertaken to assess these costs, before 
recommendations are made to the Cabinet.

15. As work develops and funding is required, projects and activities will be
subject to individual business cases as appropriate, and financial scrutiny.

Legal Implications

16. There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. Legal
implications may arise in respect of individual projects included within the
subsequent work programme as they are scoped, approved by Cabinet and
implemented. These will be subject to identification and appropriate action as
required.

Risks

17.The EV Infrastructure Strategy will be promoted as part of the forthcoming 
Council’s Climate Action Plan and supporting communication strategy. It will be 
important to manage expectations and to align communications to the capacity of 
the Council to deliver EV infrastructure improvements in South Oxfordshire.

Other Implications

18.The EV Infrastructure Strategy will help South Oxfordshire to identify:
• The opportunities and challenges for the EV charging network in the South and 

Vale districts
• The likely uptake of EVs across the districts and the centres of demand for EV 

charging
• How we will contribute to and accelerate local deployment of EV charging 

infrastructure to ensure high quality EV charging is accessible in our county
• A framework of EV charging options for residents without access to private off-

road parking 
• Opportunities to work with landowners and businesses to further increase EV 

charging provision
• Opportunities to further support the decarbonisation of road transport and 

manage the impact of EV charging on the grid.

19.An assessment of the carbon reduction impact of this strategy for the South 
Oxfordshire district should be considered as part of our planned modelling 
exercise.

Conclusion

20.While we are not formally required to adopt the Oxfordshire EV Infrastructure 
Strategy as a strategy of the Council, we are supporting and working within it as 
part of a joined-up county wide approach.

21.The Oxfordshire EV Infrastructure Strategy will be presented to Cabinet in 
February 2021.

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



1

Climate Emergency Advisory 
Committee

AGENDA ITEMReport of Head of Acting Deputy Chief Executive Transformation and 
Operations
Author: Michelle Wells 
Telephone: 07917 088341

E-mail: michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
Cabinet member responsible: Cllr. Andrea Powell 
E-mail:andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
To: Climate Emergency Advisory Committee
DATE:30 November 2020

The ten-point plan for a green industrial 
revolution

Recommendation(s)

(a) Committee to note HM Government’s policy thinking on implementing the ten-
point plan for a green industrial revolution principles and how this can support 
climate change action.

Purpose of Report

1. This report provides an overview of HM Government’s ten-point plan for a green 
industrial revolution.

2. Strategic Objectives 

This report aligns to the South Oxfordshire District Council Corporate Plan 2020-24 
and the theme Action on the Climate Emergency. 

Background

3. On 18 November 2020, the Prime Minister set out his ten-point plan for a green 
industrial revolution. In addition to helping create and support up to 250,000 jobs, it 
is also intended to act as a blueprint for the UK to achieve net-zero by 2050.

The Ten Point Plan for a Green Industrial Revolution

Page 18

Agenda Item 10



2

4. HM Government’s ten-point plan covers several interconnected areas ranging from 
clean energy through to innovative technologies. It will mobilise £12 billion of HM 
Government investment and it is envisioned that it will spur over three times as 
much private sector investment by 2030.

5. In addition to providing a guide to how the UK aims to eradicate its contribution to 
climate change by 2050, the plan is also seen as forming a key part of HM 
Government’s plans to level up the country through a green industrial revolution 
which will create the jobs and industries of the future.

THE TEN POINT PLAN 

i. Offshore Wind – The UK should produce enough offshore wind to 
power every home in the country. In order to achieve this, the amount 
of offshore wind produced will be quadrupled to 40GW by 2030. This 
will support up to 60,000 jobs.

ii. Hydrogen – Working in conjunction with industry, it is HM 
Government’s ambition that the UK should generate 5GW of low 
carbon hydrogen production capacity by 2030 for businesses, 
transport, power and homes. In addition, HM Government are looking 
to develop the first town heated entirely by hydrogen by the end of the 
decade.

iii. Nuclear – HM Government will look to advance nuclear as a clean 
energy source. This will be achieved not only through large scale 
nuclear projects, but also through the development of a new generation 
of small and advanced reactors. This could support up to 10,000 jobs.

iv. Electric Vehicles – HM Government will support car manufacturers to 
accelerate the transition to electric vehicles. In addition, major 
improvements to the existing electric vehicle infrastructure will be made 
to reinforce and quicken this shift.

v. Public Transport, Cycling and Walking – HM Government will look to 
make cycling and walking more attractive ways to travel. They will also 
invest in zero-emission public transport.

vi. Jet Zero and Green Maritime – HM Government will support the 
greening of difficult-to-decarbonise industries through research projects 
for zero-emission planes and ships. 

vii. Homes and Public Buildings – It is HM Government’s intention to make 
the UK’s homes, schools and hospitals greener, warmer and more 
energy efficient. This programme of work will help create 50,000 jobs 
by 2030. A target has also been set for 600,000 heat pumps to be 
installed every year by 2028.

viii. Carbon Capture – The UK should become a world-leader in technology 
to capture and store harmful emissions. A target has been set to 
remove 10MT of carbon dioxide by 2030.

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



3

ix. Nature – It is HM Government’s intention to protect and restore our 
natural environment. This work will include the planting of 30,000 
hectares of trees every year.

x. Innovation and Finance – HM Government will support the 
development of the cutting-edge technologies needed to achieve these 
environmental goals. Further, they will aim to ensure that the City of 
London is recognised as the global centre of green finance.

Progressing the Plan

6. To deliver on the plan, further announcements have been made impacting on six of 
the ten points.

CARBON CAPTURE

7. HM Government have committed an extra £200 million of funding to create two 
carbon capture clusters by the mid-2020s, with another two set to be created by 
2030. This has increased the total invested to £1 billion.

HYDROGEN

8. Up to £500 million will be invested to further work in this area. This will include 
trialling homes using hydrogen for heating and cooking (this will start with a 
Hydrogen Neighbourhood in 2023, moving to a Hydrogen Village by 2025 and 
aiming for a Hydrogen Town by the end of the decade). £240 million of the 
available funding will go into new hydrogen production facilities.

NUCLEAR 

9. £525 million will be provided to help in the development of large and small-scale 
nuclear plant and the creation of new advanced modular reactors. 

ELECTRIC VEHICLES

10.The UK will end the sale of new petrol and diesel cars by 2030 – ten years earlier 
than planned. Hybrid cars and vans will still be available for sale until 2035. To 
support the, therefore, necessary transition to electric vehicles, HM Government 
will:

 Invest £1.3 billion to accelerate the rollout of charge points for electric 
vehicles.

 Make available £582 million in grants for those buying zero or ultra-low 
emission vehicles.

 Provide nearly £500 million to be spent in the next four years for the 
development and mass-scale production of electric vehicle batteries. 
This is part of a wider commitment to deliver up to £1 billion in this 
area.

11.HM Government will also be launching a consultation on the phasing out of new 
diesel HGVs – no date has yet been set.

Page 20

Agenda Item 10



4

HOMES AND PUBLIC BUILDINGS

12.£1 billion will provided next year for making new and existing homes and public 
buildings more efficient. The Green Homes Grant will be extended, and public 
sector buildings will be made greener as part of the Public Sector Decarbonisation 
Scheme.

GREENER MARITIME

13.£20 million for a competition to develop clean maritime technology.

PREVIOUS ANNOUNCEMENTS

14.Other key parts of the plan will be driven forward by investment set out over the 
last year. This includes:

 The £1 billion Energy Innovation Fund.

 £5 billion or alternative greener ways of travel including cycling, 
walking, and buses.

 £5.2 billion to create for new flood and coastal defences in England by 
2027.

Conclusion

19. Committee to note HM Government’s policy thinking on implementing the ten-point 
plan for a green industrial revolution 



Page 21

Agenda Item 10


	Agenda
	7 Circular economy
	9 Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Strategy update
	10 HM Government's 10-point green plan

